
 

 

NTMC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, March 24, 2021 | 8:30 am 

To be held by Video Conference  
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the members of the NTMC Board of Directors will be meeting via video 
conference link using Zoom. The meeting will be made available to the public at the following web address: 
https://zoom.us/j/97423760137 or by joining via telephone by dialing the following number: +1-346-248-7799; 
Meeting ID: 974 2376 0137 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
This agenda item provides an opportunity for citizens to address the Board of Directors on 
any agenda item(s) or other matters relating to the NTMC. Each speaker will be given a total 
of three (3) minutes to address any item(s). Anyone wishing to speak shall be courteous and 
cordial. Any person who wishes to address the Board of Directors regarding any item(s) may 
do so by utilizing the "raise hand" function of the Zoom meeting at this time. Citizens that are 
not able to connect to the Zoom meeting must email his or her public comment to 
lbaker@dcta.net no later than 3:00 pm on Tuesday, March 23, 2021 to ensure the comment 
will be read.  The Board of Directors is not permitted to take action on any subject raised by 
a speaker during Citizen Comments. However, the Board of Directors may have the item 
placed on a future agenda for action; refer the item to the NTMC Officers for further study or 
action; briefly state existing NTMC policy; or provide a brief statement of factual information 
in response to the inquiry. 
 

 
1. CONSENT AGENDA 

a. Consider Approval of Minutes from December 9, 2020 NTMC Board Meeting  
b. Consider Approval of Minutes from January 28, 2021 Joint DCTA-NTMC Board 

Meeting 
 
2. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 

a. Monthly Financial Statements for FY2021 Year to Date January 2021 

b. Monthly Financial Statements for FY2021 Year to Date February 2021 

c. DCTA Bus Ridership Report January and February 2021 

 

https://zoom.us/j/97423760137
mailto:bpedron@ntmc.com


 

 

3. REGULAR AGENDA 
a. Consider Approval of Resolution 2021-N001 Approving FY21 Budget Revision 2021-

N001 
Exhibit 1: Resolution 2021-N001 with the following Exhibits: 

“A”: Budget Revision 2021-N001 
“B”: Change in Net Position 

 
b. Discuss Officer Positions and Consider Appointment of Secretary  

 
c. Discuss and Consider Process for Appointing NTMC General Manager Position and 

Current Contract with Hendrickson Transportation Group 
Exhibit 1 – Agreement for Transportation System General Manager 
Exhibit 2 – Amendment One to Agreement for Transportation System General 
Manager 
 

d. Discuss Board Packet Distribution Process 
Exhibit 1 – NTMC Interlocal Agreement with DCTA 
 

e. General Manager Report, Hendrickson Transportation Group  
Exhibit 1 – General Manager Report 
Exhibit 2 – General Manager Newsletter 

 
f. NTMC Staff Spotlights  

 
g. Discuss DCTA Updates 

NTMC Officers and staff will provide the Board with a status update on the following: 

i. DCTA Staffing Update  

ii. DCTA Priority Actions Progress Report 
Exhibit 1 – DCTA Priority Actions Flowchart 
 

4. CONVENE EXECUTIVE SESSION  
The Board may convene the Regular Board Meeting into Closed Executive Session for 
the following:  

a. The Board reserves the right to go into closed executive session at any time during 
the meeting pursuant to the Texas Government Code § 551.071(2) to seek 
confidential legal advice from the Corporation’s attorneys regarding any agenda item 
listed hereon. 



 

 

b. Pursuant to Texas Government Code Section 551.071(2) to consult with the 
Corporation’s Attorneys regarding the Collective Bargaining Agreement with 
Amalgamated Transit Union Local 1338; effective April 1, 2018 through March 31, 
2021.  

 
5. RECONVENE OPEN SESSION 

Reconvene and Take Necessary Action on Items Discussed during Executive Session. 
 

6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
NTMC Officers may discuss proposed future agenda items. Board members may 
request an item(s) to be added to the next Board meeting agenda. 
 

7. ADJOURN 
 
 

BOARD MEMBERS: 
Dean Ueckert, Chair 

 Richard Hayes, Vice Chair 
Don Combs, Sara Hensley, Raymond Suarez 

 
OFFICERS: 

Kristina Holcomb, NTMC President 
Nicole Recker, NTMC Vice President 

Marisa Perry, NTMC Treasurer 
NTMC Secretary (Vacant)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATE – I certify that the above agenda giving notice of meeting was posted on the bulletin board at the 
Corporation’s offices, which are also the offices of the Denton County Transportation Authority, on March 19, 2021 at 
4:00PM. 
 

 
____________________________________________ 
Lindsey N. Baker, Director of Government Affairs 
 



MEETING MINUTES 

NTMC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, December 9, 2020 | 8:30 am 

This meeting was held by Video Conference using Zoom Meetings 

The Board of Directors of the North Texas Mobility Corporation convened the Regular Meeting of the Board of 
Directors and Chair Ueckert presiding on December 9, 2020 virtually. 

ATTENDANCE 

BOARD MEMBERS  OTHER ATTENDEES 
Dean Ueckert, Chair   RJ Garza, NTMC General Manager 
Richard Hayes, Vice Chair Paula Richardson 
Don Combs  
Sara Hensley    
Raymond Suarez  

OFFICERS  
Kristina Holcomb, President  
Nicole Recker, Vice President 
Marisa Perry, Treasurer  
Brandy Pedron, Secretary  

LEGAL COUNSEL 
Joe Gorfida 

CALL TO ORDER – The meeting is called to order by Chair Ueckert at 8:30 am 

PUBLIC COMMENT – Paula Richardson made a public comment. 

1. CONVENE EXECUTIVE SESSION
The Board convened into Closed Executive Session at 8:38 am for the following:

a. Pursuant to Texas Government Code Section 551.071(2) to consult with the
Corporation’s Attorneys regarding the Collective Bargaining Agreement with
Amalgamated Transit Union Local 1338; effective April 1, 2018 through March 31,
2021.

b. RECONVENE OPEN SESSION
Board reconvened into Regular Board meeting at 9:30am. No actions/comments on Executive 
Session. Sara Hensley left the Board Meeting and did not reconvene. 

Consent Item 1a



1. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Approval of Minutes from December 9, 2020 Board Meeting

- VOTE: Vice Chair Hayes motioned to approve the minutes. Board
Member Suarez seconded the motion.  All signified by saying “aye”.
A roll call vote was not needed because there were no “no” votes; the
“aye” vote was unanimous.

2. REGULAR AGENDA

a) DCTA Priority Actions
Nicole Recker, Vice President gave an update on the following:

- Accenture Task Order #1-Service planning, Transformation Initiative
final results, and planning for  MaaS on-demand for member cities

- Trinity Metro partnership options for providing bus operations
and  maintenance

- Coordination with NTMC to open the collective bargaining agreement
for negotiation

- Chair Ueckert had a question if Trinity Metro came into effect would
that include MaaS Program.

- Nicole Recker, “no”, it would only include Fixed Route & OnDemand
- Kristina Holcomb, President gave an update on DART/DCTA Rail
- Only informational, No questions asked

b. General Manager Report, Hendrickson Transportation Group
- RJ Garza, GM gave an update which was

included in the Board packet. The update
included RunBids, Maintenance Team, Service
Crew, 3 new employees, open mechanics
positions and safety plan.

- Raymond Suarez had 1 question on Operator
positions. RJ Garza indicated that they are no
need to fill due to current services.

c. DCTA Updates
Nicole Recker, Vice President gave an update on the following:

- Arboc Purchase - 9 out of the proposed 23 Airbocs are going to be
purchased; potential to take ownership in April 2021

- RJ Garza gave an update on Onboard Camera Equipment for Revenue
Buses – plan to finalize at the end of Jan 2020; interim fix: use of existing
equipment

Consent Item 1a



d. Next Board Meeting
- The next Board Meeting is scheduled for January 15 but may have a potential Joint

Meeting on January 28

e. Future Agenda Items
- Any items that need to be added, please send in 7 days prior to any Board Meeting.

f. Adjourn – The meeting adjourned at 10:30am.

____________________ 
Dean Ueckert, Board Chair 

ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
L. Baker, Acting NTMC Secretary

Consent Item 1a



 
 

 

Consent Item 1b 

Joint Board of Directors Meeting Minutes for:                              January 28, 2021 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
 
The Joint Board of Directors of the Denton County Transportation Authority convened the Joint Meeting of the Board of Directors 

with Cesar Molina, Vice Chair presiding on January 28, 2021 remotely using Zoom Meeting. 
 

Attendance 
  

Voting Members  
Chris Watts, Chair, Denton 
Cesar Molina, Vice Chair, Denton County 
Sam Burke, Secretary, Denton County 
Dianne Costa, Highland Village 
TJ Gilmore, Lewisville 
 
Non-Voting Members  
Tom Winterburn, Corinth 
Dennie Franklin, Frisco 
Connie White, Small Cities  
Mark Miller, Flower Mound 
Joe Perez, The Colony 
 
NTMC Board 
Dean Ueckert, Chair 
Richard Hayes, Vice Chair 
Don Combs, Member 
Sara Hensley, Member 
Raymond Suarez, Member 
 
Legal Counsel 
Joe Gorfida, NJDHS 
 
DCTA Executive Staff  
Raymond Suarez, CEO 
Kristina Holcomb, Deputy Chief Executive Officer 
Marisa Perry, Chief Financial Officer/Vice 
President of Finance 
Nicole Recker, Vice President of Mobility Services 
and Administration 
 
DCTA Staff Attendees 
Lindsey Baker, Director of Government Affairs 
Rose Jerome, Project Controls Coordinator 
Athena Forrester, Assistant Vice President of 
Regulatory Compliance/DBE Liaison 
Amber Karkauskas, Controller 
Whitney Trayler, Grants Manager 
Sarah Hultquist, Mobility Service Coordinator 
Rusty Comer, Manager of Bus Administration 
Tim Palermo, Planning & Data Analytics Manager 
Adam Wells, Desktop & Application Support 
Specialist 
 

Scheduled Guest Speakers 
Chris Newport, Accenture 
Rick Dennis, HillCo 
Wayne Gensler, Trinity Metro 
Kelli Shields, Trinity Metro 
Jennifer Ripka, Weaver 
Kristin Derryberry, Weaver 
 
Public Attendees 
Mayor Charlotte Wilcox, Highland Village Alternate 
Kristin Green, Lewisville Alternate 
RJ Garza, NTMC General Manager 
Claire Powell, City of Lewisville 
Paul Stevens, Highland Village 
Brandi Bird, Bird Advocacy & Consulting 
Justin Grass, DRC 
Albert Dirla 
Trey Pope 
George Cisneros 
Rachel Jenkins 
Amy Moore 
Paula Richardson  
Dell Warnsley 
 
 



 

DCTA BOD Meeting Agenda  p 2 of 3 
 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER – Chair Watts asked Vice Chair Molina to call meeting to order and announced the 

presence of quorum at 9:04 am. 
 
CALL TO ORDER NTMC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING (NTMC BOARD CHAIR)   
 
INVOCATION & MOMENT OF SILENCE IN MEMORY OF BRANDY PEDRON 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – No public comments were made or submitted 
 
JOINT MEETING REGULAR AGENDA  
 

1. Presentation of the FY2020 Preliminary Audit Report 
- Board Member Costa asked how long Weaver had been DCTA's auditors; Jennifer Ripka said this 

was the final year on the second contract term between DCTA and Weaver; Marisa Perry, CFO, 
mentioned that DCTA had an active RFP on the streets for audit services and staff would bringing 
a request for approval to the Board at the next meeting. 

  
2. DCTA Status Update on Bus Operations and Maintenance Partnership Exploration 

- Nicole Recker, VP Mobility Services & Administration provided a status update on exploration 
of a partnership with Trinity Metro for bus operations and maintenance. In an effort to provide 
more efficient bus operations and management services, and gain access to established 
technology platforms and practices, DCTA and Trinity Metro are exploring joint bus operations 
and maintenance through a local government corporation. DCTA and Trinity Metro perform 
materially identical functions and services, in the same region, and are pursuant to similar 
statutory authority and restrictions. Both agencies desire to operate state-of-the-art 
transportation systems and to provide their patrons the highest achievable level of service. 
Those and other shared characteristics make DCTA and Trinity Metro ideal candidates for 
mutually advantageous collaboration and cooperation. 

  
3. Trinity Metro Status Update on Bus Operations and Maintenance Partnership Exploration 

- Wayne Gensler, Trinity Metro presented on behalf of CEO Bob Baulsir.  
   

4. DCTA Service Plan Update & MaaS Proposal Presentation 
Nicole Recker, VP Mobility Services & Administration, provided an updated on the service plan and 
MaaS proposal. Staff will be requesting that the DCTA board consider awarding MaaS Task Order 
#2 to River North Transit (Via).River North Transit (via) estimates an annual cost of $3,600,000 for 
the initial year of service and $4,680,000 for the second year of service. Portions of the proposed 
service have the potential to be federally reimbursed.  The extent of federal reimbursement is 
dependent on the service solutions established with River North Transit (Via).  

 
5. Discuss Potential DCTA Bus Operations Impacts to NTMC and Provide Direction to NTMC 

Board 
- Discussion led by Chair Watts and Raymond Suarez.  

 
 
 



 

DCTA BOD Meeting Agenda  p 3 of 3 
 

6. NTMC 2021 Board Meeting Calendar & Future Agenda Items 
- Kristina Holcomb presented the proposed NTMC calendar of meetings for 2021. The 

proposed calendar was provided in the meeting packet.   
 
JOINT MEETING INFORMATIONAL REPORTS – No questions asked on Info Reports. 
 

1.  DCTA Priority Actions Progress Report Priority Actions Flowchart and memo were provided in 
meeting packet.  

 
2. NTMC GM Report January GM Report was provided in meeting packet.  

 
3. NTMC Financial Statements for FY2021 Year to Date November 2020 and December 2020 

Financial Statements provided in meeting packet.  
 

4. NTMC CBA Negotiation Progress Report As NTMC approaches the expiration of the CBA, they 
are required to provide notice of their request to bargain at least sixty (60) days prior to March 31, 
2021. NTMC received official notice from ATU 1338 to bargain on January 4, 2021 and NTMC 
confirmed receipt of request – which meets the requirements set forth in the CBA.  
 

ADJOURN NTMC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AND CONTINUATION OF DCTA BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETING at 11:21 a.m. 
 

 
The minutes of the January 28, 2021 NTMC Board of Directors Meeting were passed and approved 
by a vote on this 24th day of March 2021. 
 
 

_______________________ 
 Dean Ueckert, Chair 

 
ATTEST 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Secretary 
 
 
 

 
 



Description Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance
Annual 
Budget

Operating Expenses
Salary, Wages and Benefits 603,478$        602,624$        (854)$              2,096,824$     2,425,639$     328,815$         7,451,314$       
Outsourced Services and Charges 22,235            33,354            11,119 66,864           133,020          66,156            399,919          
Materials and Supplies 76 257 181 114 1,096 982 3,293 
Insurance 9,158 9,868 710 36,633            39,934            3,301 118,878           
Employee Development 1,142 4,495              3,353 1,481 19,955             18,474             54,435            

Total Operating Expenses 636,089         650,598         14,509            2,201,915        2,619,644        417,729           8,027,839       

Income (Loss) before Transfers (636,089)        (650,598)        14,509            (2,201,915)       (2,619,644)       417,729           (8,027,839)      

Transfers In 636,089         650,598         (14,509)           2,201,915        2,619,644        (417,729)          8,027,839       
Total Transfers 636,089         650,598         (14,509)           2,201,915        2,619,644        (417,729)          8,027,839       

Change in Net Position -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

NORTH TEXAS MOBILITY CORPORATION
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

MONTH AND YEAR TO DATE AS OF JANUARY 31, 2021

(UNAUDITED)

Month Ended January 31, 2021 Year to Date January 31, 2021

Informational Reports 2a



January 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 Change

Assets
Operating Cash & Cash Equivalents 164,212$  133,024$  31,188$  
Accounts & Notes Receivable - - - 
Prepaid Expenses 73,266 82,424 (9,158) 

Total Assets 237,478 215,448 22,030 

Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 237,478 215,448 22,030 

Total Liabilities 237,478 215,448 22,030 

Net Position
Change in Net Position - - - 

Total Net Position -$  -$  -$  

NORTH TEXAS MOBILITY CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AS OF JANUARY 31, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Informational Reports 2a



Informational Reports 2b

Description Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance
Annual 
Budget

Operating Expenses
Salary, Wages and Benefits 373,141$          630,993$        257,852$        2,469,965$     3,056,632$     586,667$        7,451,314$       
Outsourced Services and Charges 21,827             33,061             11,234              88,691            166,081           77,390            399,919           
Materials and Supplies 75 291 216 188 1,387 1,199 3,293 
Insurance 9,158 9,868              710 45,791             49,802           4,011 118,878           
Employee Development 8,291 3,495 (4,796)             9,772 23,450            13,678             54,435            

Total Operating Expenses 412,492           677,708          265,216           2,614,407        3,297,352        682,945          8,027,839       

Income (Loss) before Transfers (412,492)          (677,708)         265,216           (2,614,407)       (3,297,352)       682,945          (8,027,839)      

Transfers In 412,492           677,708          (265,216)          2,614,407        3,297,352        (682,945)         8,027,839       
Total Transfers 412,492           677,708          (265,216)          2,614,407        3,297,352        (682,945)         8,027,839       

Change in Net Position $  - -$  $ - $ - -$  $ - -$  

NORTH TEXAS MOBILITY CORPORATION
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

MONTH AND YEAR TO DATE AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2021

(UNAUDITED)

Month Ended February 28, 2021 Year to Date February 28, 2021



February 28, 2021 January 31, 2021 Change

Assets
Operating Cash & Cash Equivalents 164,075$  164,212$  (137)$  
Accounts & Notes Receivable - - - 
Prepaid Expenses 64,107 73,266 (9,158) 

Total Assets 228,182 237,478 (9,296) 

Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 228,182 237,478 (9,296) 

Total Liabilities 228,182 237,478 (9,296) 

Net Position
Change in Net Position - - - 

Total Net Position -$  -$  -$  

NORTH TEXAS MOBILITY CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Informational Reports 2b



FY19-FY21 Unlinked Passenger Trips  - Bus

1

FY19 FY20 FY21
Oct 343,553    312,856      54,725 
Nov 275,007    229,347      42,194 
Dec 123,965    106,910      18,149 
Jan 208,120    190,247      44,920 
Feb 264,553    239,083      39,184 
Mar 204,509    76,657        
Apr 257,120    12,476        
May 140,915    12,186        
Jun 82,401 16,164        
Jul 75,902 17,056        
Aug 128,918    30,109        
Sep 310,865    54,773        

BUS
FY19-FY21 Unlinked Passenger Trips

Informational Report 2c



FY19-FY21 Unlinked Passenger Trips  - Demand Response*

2

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY19 FY20 FY21
Oct 3,511             4,996         1,921 2,717         2,871 1,214         794           2,125         707               
Nov 2,948             4,138         1,581 2,311         2,382 1,041         637           1,756         640               
Dec 2,702             3,763         1,750 2,109         2,221 1,166         593           1,542         584               
Jan 3,727             4,312         1,700 2,483         2,481 1,148         1,244        1,831         552               
Feb 4,089             4,001         1,458 2,468         2,224 1,023         1,621        1,777         435               
Mar 4,306             2,913         2,526         1,637 1,780        1,276         
Apr 4,425             1,847         2,661         839              1,764        1,008         
May 4,654             1,660         2,697         911              1,957        749            
Jun 4,075             1,935         2,299         1,193 1,776        742            
Jul 4,412             1,923         2,450         1,134 1,962        789            
Aug 4,697             1,976         2,538         1,245 2,159        731            
Sep 4,330             1,892         2,455         1,229 1,875        663            

\ \ \  \

FY19-FY21 Demand Response Unlinked Passenger Trips
Total Demand Response Total Aceess Total On-Demand

*ADA & Non-ADA Service in Denton, Lewisville & Highland Village

Informational Report 2c



FY19-FY21 Total Monthly Ridership – Bus*

3*UNT, NCTC, Denton, Lewisville, and Highland Village Connect Service.

-

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

Total Bus Ridership FY19-FY21*

FY19 FY20 FY21

Informational Report 2c



FY19-FY21 Total Monthly Ridership – Access

4

*ADA & Non-ADA Service in Denton, Lewisville & Highland Village

-

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

Total Access Ridership FY19-FY21*

FY19 FY20 FY21

Informational Report 2c



FY19-FY21 Total Monthly Ridership – On-Demand

5

-

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

Total On-Demand Ridership FY19-FY21*

FY19 FY20 FY21

*Frisco, Collin County Transit and Zoned Service In Denton & Highland Village

Informational Report 2c



February 2021 Winter Storm Ridership Impact

6

February 15-19, 2021 Service 
Impacts:

• Suspended UNT Shuttle Service
• Suspended A-train Service
• Denton & Lewisville Connect

Routes Operated a Saturday 
Schedule

3,570 

4,248 4,162 

3,341 

756 

3,871 

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

 3,500

 4,000

 4,500

Jan. 18-22 Jan. 25-29 Feb. 1-5 Feb. 8-12 Feb. 15-19 Feb. 22-26

DCTA Connect
Total Weekday Passenger Trips 

Informational Report 2c



Regular Item (a) 

1 

NORTH TEXAS MOBILITY CORPORATION 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-N001 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE NORTH 
TEXAS MOBILITY CORPORATION (“NTMC”) APPROVING FISCAL 
YEAR 2021 BUDGET REVISION 2021-N001 AND REVISED OPERATING 
BUDGET ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBITS “A” AND “B” 
RESPECTIVELY; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the NTMC budget is a well calculated estimate as to what will be needed for expenses 
in the fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, budget estimates are often prepared months in advance of the actual expenses and 
the possibility that the actual amount of the expenses will be known in exact terms at the time of 
the budget preparation is unlikely; and 

WHEREAS, during the fiscal year, it may become necessary to reforecast the annual expenses 
and modify the budget by amendment; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of NTMC desires to amend the fiscal year 2021 Operating 
Budget as set forth in Exhibits “A” and “B”, respectively. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
NORTH TEXAS MOBILITY CORPORATION THAT: 

SECTION 1.  The Budget Revision attached hereto as Exhibits “A” and “B”, respectively, be, and 
the same is hereby adopted and which shall amend the original budget adopted September 30, 2020, 
from and after the effective date of this Resolution.  

SECTION 2.  That all provisions of the resolutions of the NTMC Board of Directors in conflict with 
the provisions of this Resolution be, and the same are hereby, repealed, and all other provisions not 
in conflict with the provisions of this Resolution shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 3.  This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and approval. 

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE NORTH 
TEXAS MOBILITY CORPORATION THE 24TH DAY OF MARCH, 2021. 



  Regular Item (a) 

2 

APPROVED: 
 
 
        
Dean Ueckert, Chair  
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Kristina Holcomb, President 

 
 

  



Regular Item a, Exhibit A

TRANSACTION TYPE: Transfer Number: 2021-N001
Revision

Current Budget Adjusted

Budget Revision Budget

Amount Amount Amount
BUDGET REVISIONS

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salary, Wages & Benefits 7,451,314$            185,240$              7,636,554$           

Outsourced Services & Charges 399,919                300                     400,219               
Insurance 118,878                924                      119,802                

Net Budget Impact 186,464               

TRANSFERS IN / OUT
Transfers In 8,027,839            186,464               8,214,303             

Net Revision Impact -$                        

EXPLANATION:

 

DATE: 2.9.2021 REQUESTED BY:

DATE: TREASURER:

DATE: PRESIDENT:

NORTH TEXAS MOBILITY CORPORATION (NTMC)
BUDGET TRANSFER / REVISION  REQUEST

Please refer to Exhibit B, Change in Net Position schedule for budget revision details.



Regular Item a, Exhibit B

NTMC
FY 2021

Adopted Budget

NTMC
February
Revision

(Proposed)

NTMC
FY 2021

Revised Budget Notes

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salary, Wages & Benefits 7,451,314$  185,240$  7,636,554$             

*$33k - Non-Operator 3% Merit Increase
*$160k - Temporary COVID positions for additional service attendants that were not included in 
original budget but foresee the continued need for them
*Reduction of $7k due to CCT budget revision based on extended service contract

Outsourced Services & Charges 399,919 300 400,219 Additional Uniforms expense associated with CCT service extension
Materials & Supplies 3,293 - 3,293 
Utilities - - - 
Insurance 118,878 924 119,802 Additional Workers Compensation Insurance expense associated with CCT service extension
Purchased Transportation Services - - - 
Employee Development 54,435 - 54,435 
Leases & Rentals - - - 
Depreciation - - - 

Total Operating Expenses 8,027,839 186,464 8,214,303 

Income (Loss) Before Transfers (8,027,839)              (186,464) (8,214,303) 

Transfers Out - - - 
Transfers In 8,027,839 186,464 8,214,303 
Total Transfers 8,027,839 186,464 8,214,303 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION -$  -$  -$  

Description

NORTH TEXAS MOBILITY CORPORATION
Change in Net Position



Regular Item c, Exhibit 1



Regular Item c, Exhibit 1



Regular Item c, Exhibit 1



Regular Item c, Exhibit 1



Regular Item c, Exhibit 1



Regular Item c, Exhibit 1



Regular Item c, Exhibit 1



Regular Item c, Exhibit 1



Regular Item c, Exhibit 1



Regular Item c, Exhibit 1



Regular Item c, Exhibit 1



Regular Item c, Exhibit 1



Regular Item c, Exhibit 1



Regular Item c, Exhibit 1



Regular Item c, Exhibit 1



Regular Item c, Exhibit 1



Regular Item c, Exhibit 1



STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 
§ 
§ 

COUNTY OF DENTON § 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR 
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM 
GENERAL MANAGER 

This First Amendment to Agreement for Transportation System General Manager is 
made and between North Texas Mobility Corporation (''NTMC") and Hendrickson 
Transportation Group LLC ("Contractor") ( each a "Party" and collectively the "Parties"), acting 

by and through their authorized representatives. 

WHEREAS, the Parties previously entered into that certain Agreement for 
Transportation System General Manager on March 26, 2020 (the "Agreement"); and 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to amend the Agreement by amending Article I "Term" to 
extend the Agreement through March 31, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties agree to amend the Agreement as set forth herein; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and 
other valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 
Parties agree as follows: 

l. That Article I, Term, is hereby amended to read as follows:

"1.1 The Term of the Agreement shall be extended through March 31, 2021, unless
sooner terminated as provided herein.

" 

2. The Agreement shall continue in full force and effect except as amended herein. If any
terms or conditions contained in this First Amendment to Agreement for Transportation System
General Manager are inconsistent with the Agreement, the terms and conditions contained in this
First Amendment to the Agreement will be controlling.

PAGE l NTMC AND HENDRICKSON TRANSPORTATION GROUP LLC 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM GENERAL MANAGER 

Regular Item c, Exhibit 2



EXECUTED this ___ day of ________ , 2020.

North Texas Mobility Corporation 

By:
Kristina Holcomb, President

Approved as to form:

By: 

PAGE2 

Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., General Counsel
(10-23-2020:TM I 18738)) 

EXECUTED this �1/K day of �qp,6a. , 2020.

Hendrickson Transportation Group LLC 

NTMC AND HENDRICKSON TRANSPORTATION GROUP LLC 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM GENERAi.. MANAGER 

30 October

Regular Item c, Exhibit 2



Regular Item d, Exhibit 1



Regular Item d, Exhibit 1



Regular Item d, Exhibit 1



Regular Item d, Exhibit 1



Regular Item d, Exhibit 1



Regular Item d, Exhibit 1



Regular Item d, Exhibit 1



Regular Item d, Exhibit 1



Regular Item d, Exhibit 1



Regular Item d, Exhibit 1



Regular Item d, Exhibit 1



Regular Item d, Exhibit 1



Regular Item d, Exhibit 1



1 

General Manager’s – Board of Director’s March 2021 Report 
(March 16, 2021)  
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The NTMC management team focused on recruitment, General Management transitioning, CBA 
preparations, finalizing performance evaluations, participating with the Texas Motor Speedway 
(TMS) vaccine process in providing transportation to and from the Downtown Denton Transit 
Center (DDTC) and Hebron station, two or three times a week. 

Operations & Maintenance:  Transit Employee Appreciation Day (Thursday, March 18, 2021) 
In honor of Transit Employee Appreciation Day throughout the country on Thursday, March 18, 2021, 
DCTA provided taco plates for all NTMC employees.  

The Solution: 
Raymond Suarez, DCTA CEO was kind enough to deliver the food in person and participated in the event 
joining the NTMC team.  All employees were honored, and they gratefully appreciated Mr. Suarez’s and 
DCTA’s kind appreciation for the service NTMC provides DCTA. 

NTMC Non-Operators:  Annual Employee Performance Evaluations 
NTMC plans to evaluate all non-operator staff performance.   

The Solution: 
Our plan is to have all non-operators evaluated and complete this annual program in March.  The DCTA 
Board of Directors approved a recommended budget for merit increases and they will be forwarding this 

Regular Item e, Exhibit 1 



2 

recommendation for consideration to the NTMC Board of Directors for approval by the end of March 
2021.  For this reason, it’s important that all non-operators are evaluated in Kronos, if possible.  The 
timeline was delayed due to inclement weather conditions and software issues. 

Texas Motor Speedway (TMS):  Providing transportation assistance at TMS Vaccine 
Site 
DCTA requested we assist in providing transportation assistance for the TMS Vaccine 
Site efforts. 

The Solution: 
This service is provided 2 – 3 days a week for those scheduling appointments.  The Call Center 
has been accepting appointments providing that clients have a scheduled vaccine appointment.  
This service has been working very well and benefits those that may not have transportation 
ability or needs special assistance.  Thank you to NTMC staff for making this a successful 
program and partnering with DCTA. 

NTMC: Promotions 
There were three (3) employees promoted to fill vacant positions. 

• Ms. Louise Francois promoted to Interim General Manager
• Mr. Kelly Richardson promoted to Operations Manager
• Ms. Tori Anne Dickens promoted to Dispatch Supervisor

NTMC: Vacancy Positions 
• Mechanic – one (1)
• Operator – three (3)
• Dispatcher – one (1)
• Payroll & Benefits Coordinator – one (1)

NTMC Budget ending January 2021 (YTD) 

5.6% 
BELOW 
BUDGET 

Regular Item e, Exhibit 1 



3 

Past Year Highlights & News:  March 28, 2020 – March 2021 
• April 2020 – Implemented additional Safety PPE

measures due to pandemic.
o Daily sign-in sheets, temperature, issuing

gloves, wipes, hand sanitizers at dispatch
window

o Implemented Covid-19 policies and
procedures

o Organized and installed vinyl curtains on all
units with the exception to small units.

• April / May 2020 – Provided assessment of overall Operations & Maintenance
o Highlighted areas that were working well and areas that needed

improvement.
o Conducted One-on-One meetings with staff; biggest concern was not

enough communication throughout the agency.
• April 2020 – Established Leadership Staff Meetings
• April 2020 – Worked with TransitFleet vendor to improve mileage issues with

fleet
• April 2020 – Established relationship & increased the line of communication with

Union Leadership
• April 2020 – GM – Established Board of Directors reports
• May 2020 – Safety Dept. implements “Halo Sanitizing” for all vehicles.

Regular Item e, Exhibit 1 



4 

• May 2020 - #Soundthehorn Campaign to honor
transportation frontline staff

• June 2020 – Changed DDTC lobby hours of
operation, due to curfew order & protesters

• June 2020 – Established New Safety & Work
Culture

• June 2020 Implemented NTMC (SGR) training plan for staff; summer 2020
• July/August 2020 – Implemented a Vacation

Bid, established through ATU union
• June 2020 – New Run Bid, COVID-19 safety

measure improvements, maintaining social
distancing, & introduced reduction in force
process

• June/July 2020 – Joint Management
Meetings were established (DCTA &
NTMC/HTG)

• August 2020 – GM Announcement
Newsletter Implementation

• Drastically reduced Overtime expenses April
– August 2020; maintained below budget
since then throughout past 11 months.

• August 2020 – Developed NTMC monthly Dashboard
• September 2020 – DDTC lobby reopens 7am – 6pm M-F
• September 2020 – Implemented NTMC Non-Operator Reorganizational Plan
• September 2020 – Provided more Leadership training for

Management TeamSeptember 2020 – Hand Sanitizers installed on
all revenue units

• September 2020 – Coordinated effort with DCTA to improve
recruitment program

• September 2020 – Developed new NTMC Organizational Chart
• October 2020 Developed three (3) SOP’s for the safety committees

implementation; PTASP Plan
• November – December 2020 – replaced safety equipment, signs,

PA’s, and other minor improvements to fleet

Regular Item e, Exhibit 1 



5 

• Eight (8) months with Zero (0) positive COVID-19 results
• 30 Standard Operating Procedures revised, and daily staff duties uploaded into

Teams
• January 2021 – Recall operators from furlough
• January 2021 – Developed new evaluation process

specially designed for each department
• February 2021 – Implemented Mask Mandate Federal

Order
• February 2021 – Preparation for Severe Weather

Conditions
• February – March 2021 – Prepared and provided buses

for to shuttle customers to TMS vaccine site
• March 2021 – Finalized all annual performance evaluations for all non-operators

I’m proud of our NTMC team for the many accomplishments we have been able to successfully 
implement and I am confident they will continue to provide excellent customer service for our 
clients.  

Other Focus Points: 
• Increase the line of communication among all employees, & union officials.
• Establishing a new culture that encourages Team effort, Trust, Respect, and Accountability.
• Continue to provide employees necessary Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) to minimize

exposure in our fight against COVID-19, tracking the issuance of masks to passengers.
• Monthly GM – Communication Announcement Newsletter.

Robert J. Garza, “RJ” 
Interim General Manager 

Regular Item e, Exhibit 1 



BUILDING A WORLD-CLASS TRANSIT 
SYSTEM! 

Together we can build a world-
class transit system; however, I can 
not do this task alone.  I need your 
help.  Everyone has an important 
function to carry-out throughout 
each workday at NTMC. 

I ask for your commitment to this 
great effort.  The success of the 
organization requires all of us to do 
our part.  Do the best job you can 
to provide the mobility access 
opportunity for our community 
and all our customers. 

I respect each of you and I’m 
proud to be a part of the NTMC 
team.  Thank you for making 
NTMC a better place to work. 

I would like to take this opportunity 
to thank everyone for working as a 
team.  I have enjoyed my stay 
here and I’m truly grateful.  I’ll will 
always remember this agency, 
team, and hardworking 
individuals.  THANK YOU! 

CONTACT 

PHONE: 
956-466-8375

WEBSITE: 
www.ntmc.com 

EMAIL: 
rjgarza@ntmc.com 
robert.garza@trusthtg.com 

RJ 
INTERIM GENERAL MANAGER  

COMMUNICATION ANNOUNCEMENT 

Special Announcement! 

I’m pleased to announce the promotion of Ms. Louise Francois 
to Interim General Manager.  I’m so proud of her many 
accomplishments and for working hard to deserve this position.  
Thank you!  

I’m also pleased to announce the promotions of Mr. Kelly 
Richardson to Operations Manager and Ms. Anne “Tori” Dickens 
to Dispatch Supervisor.  

Thank you for your hard 
work.  

Accidents:  February 2021 
There was two (2) preventable accident for the month of 
February 2021. 

Regular Item e, Exhibit 2 

mailto:rjgarza@ntmc.com
mailto:robert.garza@trusthtg.com


Vaccine Volunteers: 
Special thanks to those who volunteered to receive the vaccine 
on February 24th.  We realize it was short notice.  If more 
vaccines come available, we will reach out to you.  

Transit Employee Appreciation Day (Thursday, March 18, 2021)  
In honor of Transit Employee Appreciation Day throughout 
the country on Thursday, March 18, 2021, DCTA provided 
taco plates for all NTMC employees.  

Raymond Suarez, DCTA CEO was kind enough to deliver 
the food in person and participated in the event joining 
the NTMC team.  All employees were honored, and they 
gratefully appreciated Mr. Suarez’s and DCTA’s kind 
appreciation for the service NTMC provides DCTA. 

Reminders: 
Travel Policy – COVID-19 safety precautions were revised please 
review bulletin boards. 

Please refrain from discussing company business with customers 
or passengers, including but not limited to route reduction, 
service changes that may or may not occur. 

Please always use professional courtesy with passengers. 

Operators:  Please tally UNT students that transfer from Denton 
Connect Routes to UNT services.  Ask dispatch for more details or 
contact Tori. 

Rail Yard Facility is currently under repairs, please be use caution 
when entering or exiting the facility.  Thanks for bearing with the 
situation.  Please limit three (3) people in the upstairs breakroom. 

Dispatchers & Road Supervisors: 
Quick and last-minute adjustments were made during February 
throughout the operations schedules and fleet assignments.  I’m 
extremely proud of everyone’s efforts and for making it happen.  
Great Job! 

Maintenance: 
I’m extremely proud of the work you’ll are doing.  We have 
noticed less road calls which triggers to less service interruptions.  
Thank you so much! 

Operators: 
Please sign-up for volunteer work assignments such as the TMS 
Shuttle and other work assignments. 

Regular Item e, Exhibit 2 



SANITIZING & DISINFECTING 

• Masks are now mandated on all DCTA vehicles.
• We are tightening up air-travel (out-of-state or country)

requests for all employees.  If you choose to travel by air
you will be required to use self-quarantine precaution
upon your return, incase becoming in contact with
COVID-19, for five (5) calendar days.  Please coordinate
with management when planning travel.

• All vehicles and facilities are thoroughly cleaned,
sanitized, and disinfected.  Special thanks to our Service
Attendants and Janitorial Crew.

• Hand sanitizers have been installed on all revenue units.
• Signages have been posted on all vehicles; to reinforce

the use of masks by our passengers and encouraging
social distancing.  Operators will be able to point to the
sign so customers can be aware.

• All curtains in vehicles are being replaced as required.
• We encourage everyone to continue to use good health

practices to prevent the spread of this unwanted virus.

Regular Item e, Exhibit 2 



1 
 

           
             
           

  
     
     

      
   

   
     

       
          
        

            
          

      
     

     
       

      
  

    
     
    
          
       

     
          
          

    
        
       
    

    
    
         

DCTA PRIORITY ACTIONS

Labor Attorney to 
Provide CBA 

Overview with 
NTMC Board

{Board Mtg 
on 12/9}

NTMC to 
Finalize Internal 

CBA Edits 

Begin Negotiation 
Process with ATU

{Dec 2020 -
Jan 2021}

Specially Called 
Joint Board Meeting

Briefing on 
Negotiation  

Activities

{Jan/Feb 2021}
{Board Mtg 

on 1/28}

Continuing 
Negotiations

NTMC Briefing on 
Negotiation 

Activities

{Feb/Mar 2021}
2/23 and 3/24

Specially Called 
Joint Board Meeting

NTMC Board 
Approves CBA

{Mar/Apr 2021}

New CBA 
in Place 

{Apr 2021}

 

 

 

SE
RV

IC
E 

PL
AN

 
TR

IN
IT

Y 
M

ET
RO

 
PA

RT
N

ER
SH

IP
 

LOI Update to DCTA 
Board

{Board Mtg 
on 12/9}

Partnership 
Exploration with 

Trinity Metro

{Dec 2020 -
Jan 2021}

{Kick-Off Mtg 
Scheduled for 12/7}

Specially Called 
Joint Board Meeting

Partnership 
Exploration Update

{Jan/Feb 2021}
{Board Mtg 

on 1/28}

Finalize Partnerships 
Structure

DCTA Board to 
Approve ILA

{Feb/Mar 2021}

Specially Called 
Joint Board Meeting

DCTA Board 
Approves 

Contracting 
Recommendation

MATS GM Transition

{Mar/Apr 2021}

Final Parternship 
Launch 

(with May service 
changes)

Transition from 
Mar/April -
Sept/Oct

{May 2021}
{Sept/Oct 2021}

N
TM

C 
 

CB
A 

N
EG

O
TI

AT
IO

N
S 

NOTES: 
• Monthly briefings on all activities will be provided to both the DCTA and NTMC boards
• Proposed timing is dependent on individual initiative progress and board approvals

Transformation 
Initiative Final 

Report 

Board Approved 
Priorities & Service 

Standards 

{Board Mtg 
on 12/10}

Service Standards to 
MaaS Providers to 
Develop Proposal 

{Dec 2020/
Jan 2021}

{Scheduled 
for 12/11}

Specially Called 
Joint Board Meeting

Presentation of 
MaaS Vendor 

Proposals and DCTA 
Board Feedback

{Jan/Feb 2021}
{Board Mtg on 

1/28}

Public Involvement 
Process

{Feb/Mar 2021}
{Mar - May 2021}
{April - June 2021}

Specially Called 
Joint Board Meeting

DCTA Board 
Approves Service 

Plan, Public 
Feedback Report 

and Title VI Analysis 

{Mar/Apr 2021}
{~July 2021}

New Service Launch 
(aligned with May 

UNT service 
changes)

{May 2021}
{Estimated -

Sept. 1, 2021}

UPDATED 3/2/2021 @ 4:02 p.m. 

CBA-requested bid process (minimum of 45 days)  Roundtables with Member Cities     
   to Review/Tweak Proposed Service Plan 

CBA expires on March 31, 2021 

Regular Item g-ii, Exhibit 1



2 

     

DCTA PRIORITY ACTIONS

 

DCTA Board 
Approves ILA for 

Access Impact Fees

{Board Mtg 
on 11/12}

LOI for Joint 
O&M Facility

{Board Mtg 
on 12/10}

Draft JOP
DART ILA 

Modification to the 
Board

{Board Mtg 
on 3/25}

{Board Mtg 
on 4/22}

Modify ILA for 
Temp/Perm Facility 

Mods

{Board Mtg 
on 4/22}

Final JOP

{Board Mtg 
on 6/24}

Modify ILA for JOP

{Board Mtg
on 9/23}

DC
TA

/D
AR

T 
JO

IN
T 

O
PE

RA
TI

N
G

 P
LA

N
 

Regular Item g-ii, Exhibit 1


	__03.24.2021 NTMC Board Agenda DRAFT
	NTMC CA 1a JAN_Joint Meeting Minutes
	NTMC CA 1b December Board Minutes
	MEETING MINUTES
	NTMC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
	Wednesday, December 9, 2020 | 8:30 am


	NTMC I(a)_Monthly Financial Statements Jan 2021
	NTMC IS 1.21
	NTMC BS 1.21

	NTMC I(b)_Monthly Financial Statements Feb 2021
	NTMC IS 2.21
	NTMC BS 2.21

	NTMC INFO 2c Bus Ridership Trend Update_031621
	FY19-FY21 Unlinked Passenger Trips  - Bus
	FY19-FY21 Unlinked Passenger Trips  - Demand Response*
	FY19-FY21 Total Monthly Ridership – Bus*
	FY19-FY21 Total Monthly Ridership – Access
	FY19-FY21 Total Monthly Ridership – On-Demand
	February 2021 Winter Storm Ridership Impact

	NTMC R(a)_Resolution 2021-N001 Approving Budget Revision 2021-N001 
	NTMC R(a)_Resolution Exhibit A
	2021-N001

	NTMC R(a)_Resolution Exhibit B
	CINP-NTMC

	GM Communication - March 2021.pdf
	COMMUNICATION ANNOUNCEMENT
	Special Announcement!
	I’m pleased to announce the promotion of Ms. Louise Francois to Interim General Manager.  I’m so proud of her many accomplishments and for working hard to deserve this position.  Thank you! 

	/
	BUILDING A WORLD-CLASS TRANSIT SYSTEM!
	CONTACT
	SANITIZING & DISINFECTING




